
1 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 

6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING August 27, 2018 

1. ROLL CALL

2. INVOCATION – Minister Leslie Joiner, Agape International Cathedral

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Regular Meeting of Council
held on August 13, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.

5. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Parking and Safety 

Committee meeting held on April 16, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Historic Preservation 
Commission meeting held on July 25, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

C. Resolution No. 18-47, a resolution authorizing the modification of 
certain traffic control signage to extend the No Parking Here to 
Corner Zone on the north side of Diverston Way from South Houk 
Road to the driveway of 280 Diverston Way.   

D. Resolution No. 18-48, a resolution authorizing the installation of a 
No Parking Anytime Zone on the west and north sides of 
Richardson Street and Vine Street from Hayes Street to the north-
south alley between Vine Street and Hayes Street.  



2 
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. CONSIDERATION OF LIQUOR PERMIT TREX  

A. Neal Kruse, DBA, Old Dog Ale House, 13 W. William Street, 
Delaware, Ohio 43015.  Permit Class: D1, D2, D2X, D3 

 
 In order to vote in favor of this application, Council would move to approve 

the TREX and not request a hearing before the Liquor Commission.   
 
9.  7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-69, an ordinance approving a Rezoning Amendment request by 
Joshua Morgan Construction LLC, at 1354 SR 521 (parcels 519-441-02-
002-000, 519-441-02-003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) from A-1 
(Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-Family Residential District) on 
approximately 2.091 acres.  

 
10. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-70, an ordinance for Metro Development LLC, for approval of a 
Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle House Apartments (240 units) on 
approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-001)from R-6 (Multi-
Family Residential District) and B-3 Community Business District) to R-6 
and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the 
north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of 
the Chesrown Auto Storage Lot.  

 
11. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-71, an ordinance for Metro Development LLC, for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) to be established for the Seattle House Apartments 
(240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-001) 
and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of 
Bowtown Road just east of the Chesrown Auto Storage Lot.  

 
12. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-72, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Seattle House Apartments 9240 Units) on approximately 24.212 acres 
(parcel 519-444-01-001-001) zoned R-6 and B-3 PMU (Multi-Family 
Residential District and Community Business District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of US 36/37 
and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the Chesrown Auto 
Storage Lot.  

 



3 
 

13. 7:45 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 
18-73, an ordinance for Metro Development LLC, for approval of a 
Rezoning Amendment for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-
10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU 
(Multi-Family Residential with a Planned Mixed Use overlay District) and 
located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments.  

 
14. 7:45 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-74, an ordinance for Metro Development LLC, for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) to be established for the Highpoint Place 
Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-
10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments.  

 
15. SECOND READING Ordinance No. 18-75, an ordinance for Metro 

Development LLC, for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres 
(parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU 
(Multi-Family Residential with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and 
located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments.  

 
16. SECOND READING Ordinance No. 18-76, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2018 appropriations ordinance to provide additional funding for the 
renovation of City Hall and the City Hall Annex and to make 
improvements to the parking lot east of the City Hall Annex building.   

 
17. SECOND READING Ordinance No. 18-77, an ordinance determining that 

the petition for the establishment of the Terra Alta Community Authority 
complies as to form and substance with the requirements of Section 
349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code and to fix a date and place for a public 
hearing on that petition, and declaring an emergency.   

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-49, a resolution declaring the 

intent of the City of Delaware to appropriate a fee simple interest in a 
temporary construction easement in and to a portion of the parcel of real 
estate located at 250 East William Street in the City of Delaware and a 
temporary construction easement in and to a parcel of real estate located 
at 241 East William Street in the City of Delaware.  

 
19. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 18-50, a resolution adopting the 



4 
 

2019-2023 Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 
 
20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-79, an ordinance supplementing 

the 2018 Appropriations Ordinance to increase funding for the purchase 
of fuel, and declaring an emergency.  

 
21. FINANCE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
22. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
23. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
24. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 











































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM C DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-47 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MODIFICATION OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC 
CONTROL SIGNAGE TO EXTEND THE NO PARKING HERE TO CORNER ZONE 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF DIVERSTON WAY FROM SOUTH HOUK ROAD TO 
THE DRIVEWAY OF 280 DIVERSTON WAY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A resident requested that a No Parking Zone be established on the north and 
south sides of Diverston Way from South Houk Road to Blakemore Drive to 
provide for safe maneuverability of vehicles in the east and west bound 
directions on Diverston Way at South Houk Road.  City Staff and the Parking 
and Safety Committee reviewed the request and, given that the Westport 
Homes model home is located on the north side of Diverston Way just east of 
South Houk Road, the Committee recommended that the No Parking Here to 
Corner Zone only be extended on the north side of Diverston Way to the 
driveway of 280 Diverston Way and that statutory No Parking Here to Corner 
Zone be signed on the south side of Diverston Way.  This will provide for safer 
maneuverability of vehicles in the east and west bound direction on Diverston 
Way at South Houk Road, but will still allow for the model home employees and 
visitors to park on the south side of Diverston Way directly across from the 
model home. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 



The placement of regulatory signage requires City Council authorization for 
permanent enforcement. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the August 20, 2018 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the signage is estimated at $100.00 to come out 
of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-47 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MODIFICATION 
OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAGE TO 
EXTEND THE NO PARKING HERE TO CORNER ZONE 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF DIVERSTON WAY FROM 
SOUTH HOUK ROAD TO THE DRIVEWAY OF 280 
DIVERSTON WAY. 
 

WHEREAS, the No Parking Here to Corner Zone extension has been 
requested so as to provide for safe maneuverability of vehicles east and west 
bound on Diverston Way at South Houk Road; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed this 
modification by a 3-0 vote at the August 20, 2018 meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  The No Parking Here to Corner Zone will be extended on the 
north side of Diverston Way from South Houk Road to the driveway of 280 
Diverston Way. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



feet

meters

500

100

jormeroid


jormeroid


jormeroid
NO PARKING



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  CONSENT ITEM D DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-48 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A NO PARKING 
ANYTIME ZONE ON THE WEST AND NORTH SIDES OF RICHARDSON STREET 
AND VINE STREET FROM HAYES STREET TO THE NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY 
BETWEEN VINE STREET AND HAYES STREET. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
City of Delaware Parking Control Officers requested that a No Parking Anytime 
Zone be installed on west and north sides of Richardson Street and Vine Street 
between Hayes Street and the north-south alley between Hayes Street and Vine 
Street.  This roadway is approximately 20-feet wide, so restricting parking to 
one side is needed to provide for safe maneuverability of vehicles along 
Richardson St, in particular Fire/EMS vehicles.   In addition to the narrowness 
of this section of roadway, there have been issues with recreational/work 
vehicles, equipment and firewood being stored within the City right-of-way on 
the west and north sides of the street, which has since been addressed. City 
Staff made a final recommendation that a No Parking Anytime Zone be 
installed per the initial request from the Parking Control Officers. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
The placement of regulatory signage requires City Council authorization for 
permanent enforcement. 
 
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parking and Safety Committee 
recommendation at the August 20, 2018 meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The cost of materials to install the signage is estimated at $200.00 to come out 
of the Public Works Traffic Division annual operating budget. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit A 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-48 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION 
OF A NO PARKING ANYTIME ZONE ON THE WEST 
AND NORTH SIDES OF RICHARDSON STREET AND 
VINE STREET FROM HAYES STREET TO THE 
NORTH-SOUTH ALLEY BETWEEN VINE STREET AND 
HAYES STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the No Parking Anytime Zone has been requested so as to 
provide for the safe maneuverability of vehicles along Richardson Street and 
Vine Street; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parking and Safety Committee has endorsed the 
installation of the a No Parking Anytime Zone on the west and north sides of 
Richardson Street and Vine Street from Hayes Street to the north-south alley 
between Vine Street and Hayes Street by a 3-0 vote at the August 20, 2018 
meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL FOR THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, STATE OF OHIO: 
 

SECTION 1.  The No Parking Anytime Zone will be installed on the west 
and north sides of Richardson Street and Vine Street from Hayes Street to the 
north-south alley between Vine Street and Hayes Street. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS___ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



feet

meters

600

200

jormeroid


jormeroid
NO PARKING



 
 

 

 

Visit  
  

 

 

 

call 

 

fax 

 

click 
City Hall  —  1 south sandusky st  —  Delaware, oh 43015 740-203-1010 740-203-1024 www.delawareohio.net 

 

MEMORANDUM 
TO: Tom Homan, City Manager 
                Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
FROM: Sean Hughes, Economic Development Director 
DATE: 8/17/2018 
RE:  Economic Development Related Transfer of Liquor Permit (TREX) to Neal Kruse, DBA Old Dog Ale 
House 

 
This is intended to provide information related to a requested transfer of a liquor permit for Neal Kruse, DBA 
Old Dog Ale House at 13 W. William St. as an economic development project (“TREX”) into Delaware.  
 
As you know, state law allows for the transfer of the ownership and location of liquor permits from one 
municipality to an economic development project located in another municipality in Ohio.  Transferring a 
permit to an economic development project in a new municipality is known as TREX. It is required that the 
new municipality acknowledge that the liquor permit will be transferred to an economic development 
project. 
 
This memorandum, and the information provided below is verification that the Neal Kruse, DBA Old Dog Ale 
House project is indeed an economic development project.  
 
The following economic development impact information has been provided to City staff by way of written 
information from the project owners, in addition to a follow-up conversation with the principal business 
owner Neal Kruse:  
 
• Estimated Investment (equipment, services, utilities, etc.):   $200,000  
• Total number of jobs to be created:   25 
• Estimated Annual Tax Collections: 
o Sales Tax:   $75,000 
o State Unemployment Tax:   $15,000 
o State Withholding Tax:   $35,000 
o Property Tax:  $7,962 
 
On the basis of this information, I recommend that the City Manager acknowledge, by signature on TREX 
application, that the Neal Kruse, DBA Old Dog Ale House project represents an economic development project 
within the City of Delaware. 

http://www.delawareohio.net/








  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 9    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-69    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING AMENDMENT REQUEST BY 
JOSHUA MORGAN CONSTRUCTION LLC., AT 1354 SR 521 (PARCELS 519-
441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) FROM A-1 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO R-3  (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 2.091 ACRES.    
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-69 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING 
AMENDMENT REQUEST BY JOSHUA MORGAN 
CONSTRUCTION LLC., AT 1354 SR 521 (PARCELS 519-
441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-003-000 & 519-441-02-
004-000) FROM A-1 (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT) TO R-3 
 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 2.091 ACRES.    
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment request by Joshua Morgan 
Construction LLC., at 1354 SR 521 (Parcels 519-441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-
003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-
Family Residential District) on approximately 2.091 acres (2018-1589).   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment request by Joshua Morgan 
Construction LLC., at 1354 SR 521 (Parcels 519-441-02-002-000, 519-441-02-
003-000 & 519-441-02-004-000) from A-1 (Agricultural District) to R-3 (One-
Family Residential District) on approximately 2.091 acres (2018-1589), is hereby 
confirmed, approved and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The engineering drawing shall be approved by the City prior to building 
permit approval of the first house. 

2. The houses shall achieve compliance with all R-3 zoning requirements. 
3. A sidewalk along SR 521 shall be required for each single family lot. 
4. Each house and lot shall achieve compliance with all other City 

development requirements.   
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 10    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-70    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-001-001) 
FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND B-3 (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT) TO R-6 AND B-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE 
SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO 
STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 



  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-70 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-
001-001) FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) AND B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) 
TO R-6 AND B-3 PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 
36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD 
JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018  
recommended approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-3 (Community Business 
District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1394).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Rezoning Amendment for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) and B-3 (Community Business 
District) to R-6 and B-3 PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provision of the Development Text and any conditions 
of approval. 

2. Any revisions to the public or private street layout shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 

3. The maximum amount of multi-family dwelling units permitted in Sub-
Area 4 shall not exceed 240 dwelling units. 

4. The several mature trees along Bowtown Road shall be preserved along 
with constructing a minimum 10 foot high mound with minimum 6 foot 
high evergreens planted in a soldier course manner along Bowtown Road 



to provide a consistent year round buffer. The subject mound shall wrap 
around the eastern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single 
family house. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 11    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-71    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:30 p.m.  
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 
ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-001-001) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE 
OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF 
THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 7-0 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-71 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING 
THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 519-444-01-
001-001) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF US 
36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD 
JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown 
Road just east of the Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1395).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit allowing the placement of a 
PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) and located on the north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown 
Road just east of the Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-72    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE SEATTLE HOUSE 
APARTMENTS (240 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 
519-444-01-001-001) ZONED R-6 AND B-3 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST 
OF THE CHESROWN AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 6-1 on August 1, 
2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-72 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR THE  SEATTLE HOUSE APARTMENTS (240 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 24.212 ACRES (PARCEL 
519-444-01-001-001) ZONED R-6 AND B-3 PMU (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF US 36/37 AND THE SOUTH SIDE OF 
BOWTOWN ROAD JUST EAST OF THE CHESROWN 
AUTO STORAGE LOT.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) zoned R-6 and B-3 (Multi-Family Residential District and Community 
Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the 
north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot (PC Case 2018-1396).   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Development Plan for the Seattle House 
Apartments (240 units) on approximately 24.212 acres (parcel 519-444-01-001-
001) zoned R-6 and B-3 (Multi-Family Residential District and Community 
Business District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the 
north side of US 36/37 and the south side of Bowtown Road just east of the 
Chesrown auto storage lot, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The traffic impact study shall be approved by the City and the developer 
shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial obligations of 
the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County Engineer. 

3. The north/south access road and Bilmore Drive shall be constructed per 
the City Engineer. 



4. The emergency only access road from Bowtown Road to the apartment 
complex shall be constructed per the City Engineer and Fire 
Department. 

5. A bike path shall be conducted on the north side of Biltmore Drive per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027 and a sidewalk 
shall be required on the south side of Biltmore Drive. 

6. A sidewalk shall be constructed on the south side of Bowtown Road. 

7. The developer shall make a payment in lieu of constructing a sidewalk 
on the east side of the north/south connector road. The City Engineer 
shall determine the required payment in lieu prior to Final Development 
Plan approval. 

8. The density of the multi-family portion of the development (Sub-Area A) 
shall not exceed 240 units. 

9. The one and two bedroom apartment unit sizes shall range in size 
between a minimum 678 (one bedroom) to 933 (two bedroom) square 
feet. 

10. The height of the buildings shall not exceed 42 feet (to the peak of the 
eave) and shall not exceed 3 stories. 

11. The apartment building elevations fronting Bowtown Road and proposed 
Biltmore Drive shall have the majority of the elevation constructed of 
brick or stone with vinyl used as an accent material.  Hardi plank or 
equivalent could be substituted for the vinyl siding to meet natural 
material requirements as well. Any limestone on the buildings shall be 
constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved 
by staff. 

12. The trash compactor enclosure shall be constructed of brick or stone 
wall to match the buildings and have wood doors painted to match and 
shall be buffered form the residential property to the east,. 

13. The apartment and the commercial out lot frontage along the 
north/south access road and Biltmore Drive shall require street and 
shade trees along with a 2-3 foot high undulating mounding with 
landscaping (a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreen trees and shrubs). 

14. The several mature trees along Bowtown Road shall be preserved along 
with constructing a minimum 10 foot high mounding with minimum 6 
foot high evergreens planted in a soldier course manner along Bowtown 
Road to provide a consistent year round buffer. The subject mound shall 
wrap around the eastern portion of the site to screen the adjacent single 
family house. 

15. The parking islands within the apartment development shall be planted 
with street trees. 



16. All landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

17. The open space within the apartment development shall have additional 
amenities, detailed during Final Development Plan process including 
pavilions, benches, dog parks, recreational fields and the like. Any field 
space shall be flat and shall not provide storm water drains except at the 
edges of the area to eliminate catch basins being located in the middle of 
any field surface.   

18. Lighting plans that achieves compliance with the zoning code and 
approved development text that would need to be approved by the Chief 
Building Official shall be required with Final Development Plan 
submittal. 

19. A comprehensive sign plan that achieves compliance with the zoning 
code requirements, the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridors Plan shall be required with the Final 
Development Plan submittal. 

20. The garages shall not be rented out to any non-residents of the 
apartment complex or for any use or occupancy other than storage of 
vehicles. 

21. The private street names shall be submitted and approved by the City 
and other appropriate agencies.  

22. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the Fire 
Department and Public Works development final requirements after the 
final review is complete. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-73    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC., FOR APPROVAL OF A 
REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 
UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 
AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF 
BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1130 Amendments of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a 4-3 vote on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-73 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A REZONING AMENDMENT FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON 
APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-
020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) FROM R-6 (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) TO R-6 PMU (MULTI-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE 
OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF VILLAGE 
GATE APARTMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission  at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Rezoning Amendment for the Highpoint Place 
Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-
000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 (Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 
PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) 
and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate 
Apartments (PC Case 2018-1402).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Rezoning 
Amendment for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) from R-6 
(Multi-Family Residential District) to R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. Any new structure(s) or any change of land use shall require 
conformance to all provision of the Development Text and any conditions 
of approval. 

2. Any revisions the public or private street layout shall require 
conformance to all provisions of the Development Text and any 
conditions of approval. 

3. The maximum amount of multi-family dwelling units permitted shall not 
exceed 160 dwelling units. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 



this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-74    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       August 27, 2018 at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  FOR APPROVAL OF A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU 
(PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE 
HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 
ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote 4-3 on August 
1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  



POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-74 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC.,  
FOR APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
ALLOWING THE PLACEMENT OF A PMU (PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) TO BE ESTABLISHED 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) AND LOCATED 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST 
OF VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit allowing the 
placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be established for the 
Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 
519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located on the north side of 
Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1403). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns the 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of a Conditional Use 
Permit allowing the placement of a PMU (Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) to be 
established for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 
16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) and located 
on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 15    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-75    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR APPROVAL OF A 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE 
APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-
442-10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU (MULTI-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129.04 Procedures of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended denial of the case by a vote of 4-3 on 
August 1, 2018.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 



N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-75 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR METRO DEVELOPMENT LLC, FOR 
APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
FOR THE HIGHPOINT PLACE APARTMENTS (160 UNITS) 
ON APPROXIMATELY 16.70 ACRES (PARCELS 519-442-
10-020-000 AND 519-442-10-021-000) ZONED R-6 PMU 
(MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE 
NORTH SIDE OF BOWTOWN ROAD JUST WEST OF 
VILLAGE GATE APARTMENTS.  
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on August 1, 2018 
failed to recommend approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for the Highpoint 
Place Apartments (160 units) on approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-
020-000 and 519-442-10-021-000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on the north side 
of Bowtown Road just west of Village Gate Apartments (PC Case 2018-1404). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Council of the City of Delaware overturns 
recommendation of denial by the Planning Commission of the Preliminary 
Development Plan for the Highpoint Place Apartments (160 units) on 
approximately 16.70 acres (parcels 519-442-10-020-000 and 519-442-10-021-
000) zoned R-6 PMU (Multi-Family Residential District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located on the north side of Bowtown Road just west of 
Village Gate Apartments, is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the 
following conditions that: 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. The traffic impact study shall be approved by the City and the developer 
shall be responsible for any improvements and/or financial obligations of 
the traffic impact study per the City Engineer and/or County Engineer. 

3. Ferguson Avenue from Bowtown Road shall be extended north to the 
adjacent property line per the City Engineer. 

4. The developer shall dedicate the appropriate right-of-way and make a 
payment in lieu to be determined by the City Engineer for the Ferguson 



Avenue extension along the northern portion of the property that would 
be constructed when the adjacent properties are developed. 

5. A bike path shall be constructed on the east side of Ferguson Avenue per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027 and a side walk 
shall be required on the west side of Ferguson Avenue. 

6. A bike path shall be constructed on the north side of Bowtown Road per 
the adopted Bicycle and Pedestrians Master Plan 2027. 

7. The density of the multi-family portion of the development shall not 
exceed 160 units. 

8. The one and two bedroom apartment unit sizes shall range in size 
between a minimum 678 (one bedroom) to 933 (two bedroom) square 
feet. 

9. The height of the buildings shall not exceed 42 feet (to the peak of the 
eave) and shall not exceed 3 stories. 

10. The apartment building elevations shall have the majority of the 
elevation constructed of brick or stone with vinyl used as an accent 
material on the public view side of the building.  Hardi plank or 
equivalent could be substituted for the vinyl siding to meet natural 
material requirements as well. Any limestone on the buildings shall be 
constructed of Delaware blue vein limestone or equivalent as approved 
by staff. 

11. The Ferguson Avenue right-of-way shall be setback a minimum 20 feet 
from the residential property to the west, 

12. The trash compactor enclosure shall be constructed of brick or stone 
wall to match the buildings and have wood doors painted to match and 
shall be buffered form the residential property to the east,. 

13. The road frontage along Ferguson Avenue and Bowtown Road that is not 
adjacent to a single family property shall have a 2-3 foot high undulating 
mound with landscaping (a mixture of deciduous trees, evergreen trees 
and shrubs) 

14. A 5-6 foot high mound with landscaping and minimum 6 foot high 
evergreen trees planted in a soldier course manner shall be required  
along the east  and west side of Ferguson Avenue adjacent to the existing 
single family properties fronting Bowtown Road 

15. The parking islands within the apartment development shall be planted 
with street trees. 

16. All landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

17. The open space within the apartment development shall have more 
amenities including pavilions, benches, dog park, recreational fields and 



the like  and to ensure any field space is flat and does not provide storm 
water drains except at the edges of the area to eliminate catch basins 
being located in the middle of any playing surface.   

18. The tree preservation area shall be located within a permanent 
preservation easement with the appropriate language that would need to 
be reviewed and approved by staff and then be recorded at the County. 

19. Lighting plans that achieves compliance with the zoning code and 
approved development text that would need to be approved by the Chief 
Building Official shall be required with Final Development Plan 
submittal. 

20. A comprehensive sign plan that achieves compliance with the zoning 
code requirements, the approved development text and the adopted 
Gateways and Corridors Plan shall be required with the Final 
Development Plan submittal. 

21. The private street names shall be submitted and approved by the City 
and other appropriate agencies.  

22. The entire development shall achieve compliance with the Fire 
Department and Public Works development final requirements after the 
final review is complete. 

23. An emergency access location shall be located through the Village Gate 
Apartments to the east if possible. If not possible another location shall 
be established and approved by the City Engineer and Fire Department 
prior to Final Development Plan submittal. 

24. The garages shall not be rented out to any non-residents of the 
apartment complex or for any use or occupancy other than storage of 
vehicles. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-76    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean P. Stelzer, Director of Finance 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE RENOVATION OF  CITY HALL 
AND THE CITY HALL ANNEX AND TO MAKE IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PARKING 
LOT EAST OF THE CITY HALL ANNEX BUILDING. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City is providing renovations to the City Hall Annex, including complete 
renovation of the basement and first floor levels to be occupied by the Delaware 
Community Space, and mechanical, electrical, and structural improvements to 
the second floor to be utilized by City staff.  Upon further consideration, it has 
been recommended to finish the second floor space to enable occupancy by the 
City, to complete various relocation and security renovations to City Hall, and to 
make improvements to the parking lot east of the Annex building.  The Finance 
Committee reviewed the fiscal impact of making the additional improvements at 
their July 30, 2018 meeting and recommended that the supplemental 
appropriation be presented for City Council consideration.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
No appropriation was included in the 2018 budget 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Finance Committee – Approval  3-0 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
$777,600 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
Dean Stelzer, Director of Finance 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt at second or third reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-76 
 
 AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 

APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR THE RENOVATION OF  
CITY HALL AND THE CITY HALL ANNEX AND TO 
MAKE IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PARKING LOT EAST 
OF THE CITY HALL ANNEX BUILDING. 

 
WHEREAS, the City is in the process of making improvements to the City 

Hall Annex in order to make the building usable for Delaware Community 
Space (formerly CoHatch) as a space for local entrepreneurs, and  

 
WHEREAS, City Council had previously approved Ordinance No. 18-26 

supplementing the 2018 Budget to provide for renovations to the City Hall 
Annex including complete renovation of the basement and first floor levels to be 
occupied by Delaware Community Space and mechanical, electrical, and 
structural improvements to the second floor to eventually be utilized by the 
City, and  

 
WHEREAS, upon further consideration it has been recommended to 

finish off the second floor space of the Annex to enable occupancy by the City,  
to complete various relocation and security renovations to City Hall, and to 
make improvements to the parking lot east of the Annex Building, and  

 
WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation to the 2018 budget will be 

necessary to fund these renovations. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Capital Improvement Fund $777,600 increasing the following 
accounts: 
 
 Annex Building Improvements (410-4118-5528)   $  231,000 
 City Hall Building Renovations (410-4118-5520)           218,000 
 Parking Lot Improvements (410-4118-5526)       328,600 
 
 SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 



 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 08/23/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18- 77   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       September 10, 2018 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT THE PETITION FOR THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY COMPLIES 
AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 
349.03 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE AND TO FIX A DATE AND PLACE FOR A 
PUBLIC HEARING ON THAT PETITION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
08/23/2018 UPDATE: 
At the August 13 meeting, Council requested the City Attorney compile a list of 
potential criteria for future NCA petitions.  City staff continues to work towards 
a draft for consideration by Council at a future meeting.  In the meantime, City 
Manager Tom Homan and Planning Director Dave Efland met with the current 
applicant to discuss the pending petition.  Further updates will be provided at 
the meeting.  
 
08/13/2018: 
A New Community Authority (NCA) is a charge put on residents’ property tax bill 
to help pay for infrastructure in the authority area.  The charge is usually used 
as a tool to facilitate future development.   
 
The City has two existing NCAs, which were created to help finance 
infrastructure put in by the City after the formation of the NCA. When the 



infrastructure is paid off, the charges will be removed from the taxes in the 
existing NCAs. 
 
The City has experienced some issues with residents in the current NCAs.  For 
example, the charge is often a source of confusion for residents who do not 
understand what the charge pays for.  Some residents feel the charge is too high.  
Because it is based on millage (property tax value), owners of new houses are 
often surprised by the charge even though it was disclosed, because the tax rate 
on the auditor’s website is based on the value of the land when it was vacant.  
Finally, during the levy campaign, residents in the NCA indicated they felt their 
NCA charge should already cover roads and were therefore reluctant to approve 
additional taxes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Statutory process  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The petition anticipates 2250 new residents will reside in the district at full build 
out. The requested NCA would add a 7.5 mills charge to each parcel of property 
in the district.  This would result in a $.75 charge for each $1,000 of assessed 
valuation, which would appear on the residents’ property tax bill. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The present request being brought forward by the developer differs from our 
existing NCAs in the following ways. First, it would reimburse the developer as 
opposed to the City.  Second, the developer has indicated that it is intended to 
help finance amenities, but the majority of the items the developer would be 
reimbursed for through the charge are infrastructure items that traditionally are 
a developer’s responsibility to install. Third, part of the charge would go towards 
reimbursing the developer for infrastructure that has already been built, which 
does not fit with the City’s prior use of an NCA to finance future development.  
Finally, the proposed NCA has no set end date. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is concerned that by adding a significant cost to the property tax bill of 
2250 new residents of the city, it will make it more difficult for city and school 
levies to pass.  In addition, based on the volume of calls generated by the 
existing NCAs, staff anticipates additional staff time will be required to help 
these new residents understand the charge.  Finally, staff believes approving 
this NCA will set a precedent for future NCA requests.  To the extent these 
expenses are related to amenities, they could be financed by a homeowners 



association (HOA) charge, which would make it clear what the charge is paying 
for and eliminate any confusion over perceived increased taxes.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Petition 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-77  
 

AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT THE 
PETITION FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE 
TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY 
COMPLIES AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE WITH 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 349.03 OF 
THE OHIO REVISED CODE AND TO FIX A DATE 
AND PLACE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THAT 
PETITION, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY.  

 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, TERRA 

ALTA, LLC (the “Developer”), has filed a petition (the “Petition”) with Clerk of 
Council for the City of Delaware (the “City”) as required by Chapter 349.03(A) of 
the Ohio Revised Code, with that Petition being for the establishment of The 
Terra Alta Community Authority (the “Authority”) and its proposed new 
community district (the “District”); and   

 
WHEREAS, this Council comprises the “organizational board of 

commissioners” for the proposed Authority, as that term is defined in Section 
349.01(F) of the Ohio Revised Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, the land to be included in the District is owned by or is under 

the control of the Developer within the meaning of Section 349.01(E) of the Ohio 
Revised Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, this Council has reviewed the Petition to determine whether it 

complies with the requirements of Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code as 
to form and substance; and 

  
WHEREAS, this Council desires to fix a time and place of a public hearing 

on the Petition, which public hearing will be held not less than 30 days nor more 
than 45 days from the date the Petition was filed with the Clerk of this Council, 
and desires that notice of that public hearing be given, all pursuant to Section 
349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio:  
 
 SECTION 1. This Council hereby finds and determines that the Petition 
complies as to form and substance with the requirements of Section 349.03 of 
the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 2. This Council will hold a public hearing on the Petition on 
Monday. August 13, 2018, commencing at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
at Delaware City Hall, One South Sandusky Street, Delaware, Ohio 43015.  



2 
 

 
 SECTION 3. The Clerk of Council arrange for notice of that public hearing 
by publication once each week for three consecutive weeks in a newspaper of 
general circulation in Delaware County in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

SECTION 4. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council and any of its 
committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees 
that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in 
compliance with the law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 SECTION 5. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health, and welfare of the City and to timely advance consideration of the 
Petition of the Developer to enable the City to receive the full benefit of the 
proposed development.  
 

VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:                     YEAS______   NAYS_____ 
         ABSTAIN______  

 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:    YEAS _____   NAYS_____ 

ABSTAIN_______ 
 
PASSED:___________________ , 2018    YEAS______   NAYS_____ 

ABSTAIN_______ 
 
 

ATTEST:______________________   ______________________                                    
      CITY CLERK     MAYOR    

     

















































































































































































FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  18 

ORDINANCE NO:  

READING: FIRST  

DATE: 08/27/2018 

RESOLUTION NO: 18-49 

PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
Darren M. Shulman, Esq., City Attorney 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE INTENT OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE TO 
APPROPRIATE A FEE SIMPLE INTEREST IN AND A TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT IN AND TO A PORTION OF THE PARCEL OF 
REAL ESTATE LOCATED AT 250 EAST WILLIAM STREET IN THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE AND A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT IN AND TO A 
PARCEL OF REAL ESTATE LOCATED AT 241 EAST WILLIAM STREET IN THE 
CITY OF DELAWARE.  

BACKGROUND: 
 In June of 2017 the City was authorized by FHWA and ODOT to begin the 
Right-of-Way acquisition process. There were 61 parcels impacted with this 
project. The majority of the impacts were the need of temporary construction 
easements. There were also several small Right-of-Way acquisitions needed. 
The City was able to come to an agreement on 60 of the parcels. The City was 
unable to settle with 1 parcel. The parcel located at 241 East William Street. 
The negotiating team was unable to establish contact with the owner. Efforts to 
reach out to the owner included several mailings of Certified Letters and 
numerous visits to the property at various times of the day and evening. The 
outreach efforts are detailed in the attached Appropriation Packet. 

The size of the Temporary Construction Easement needed at 241 East William 
Street is approximately 392 square feet (0.009 acres). The Temporary easement 



is a narrow strip (+/- 3 feet wide) along the back of the new sidewalk that 
needs to be graded to tie the lawn and sidewalk together and backfill the over-
dig of the sidewalk.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
A temporary construction easement is needed for construction of the East 
William road improvement project.  Agreements have been reached with all but 
one of the property owners.  This resolution is the first step required to start 
the appropriations process.  Because this is a road improvement project, if the 
parties do not reach a resolution, the City would employ a quick take 
procedure to permit the project to move forward according to the required 
schedule.  In this case, the City would get the easement and then the parties 
would litigate the value of the easement.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
None 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
In addition to the $300, which would be deposited with the Court, the court 
process would require staff time. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None.  It is consistent with City policy to attempt to negotiate with landowners 
prior to initiating eminent domain procedures. 
 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren M. Shulman, Esq., City Attorney  
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Exhibit B for 241 East William Street 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-49 
 
 A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE INTENT OF THE 

CITY OF DELAWARE TO APPROPRIATE A FEE 
SIMPLE INTEREST IN AND A TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT IN AND TO A PORTION 
OF THE PARCEL OF REAL ESTATE LOCATED AT 250 
EAST WILLIAM STREET IN THE CITY OF DELAWARE 
AND A TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT IN 
AND TO A PARCEL OF REAL ESTATE LOCATED AT 
241 EAST WILLIAM STREET IN THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE.  

  
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the City of Delaware to appropriate 

property for anticipated road improvements and increased vehicular traffic in 
the area of East William Street in the City of Delaware; and 

 
WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements herein above described is 

considered to be a priority need for the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware has determined the appropriation is 

necessary for the stated purpose, and the City intends to obtain immediate 
possession of the property. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. A temporary construction easement in and to the parcel of 
real estate located at 241 East William Street owned by Genevieve M. Bolen, 
and as described in Exhibit B is appropriated for municipal purposes 
specifically, the Widening of E William Street pursuant to the Constitution and 
laws of the State of Ohio. 

 
SECTION 2. This Council finds that the appropriation is necessary for 

the stated public purpose, and that the City has been unable to agree with the 
owners of the property.  
 

SECTION 3. That the City Manager is hereby directed to cause written 
notice of the passage of this Resolution to be given to the owners and any other 
persons having an interest of record in the above described premises or to their 
authorized agents. Such notices shall be served and return made in the 
manner provided for the service and return of summons in civil actions. If such 
owner, persons or agents cannot be found, notice shall be given by publication 
once each week for three consecutive weeks in the Delaware Gazette. 

 



SECTION 4: After the requirements of Section 3 have been met, the City 
is directed to file a Complaint for Appropriation in the Court of Common Pleas, 
Delaware County, Ohio and deposit with the court the value of the properties in 
the amount of $300.00 for 241 East William Street representing the minimum 
amount of compensation required by the Ohio Department of Transportation, 
which exceeds the value of the property being appropriated. 

 
SECTION 5. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning ant relating to the passage 
of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal action were in meeting open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 6. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 18-50 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2019-2023 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A work session to discuss the CIP has been scheduled for Thursday, September 
6 and Monday, October 1. 
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Pursuant to Section 79 of the Charter, the CIP is to be submitted to City 
Council by August 15 and adopted no later than October 15.  Adoption is 
scheduled for Council’s October 8 meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
CIP 



RESOLUTION 18-50 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2019-2023 FIVE-
YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 

 
 WHEREAS, a revised Five-Year Capital Improvements Program was 
prepared and submitted to City Council in accordance with Article XVII, 
Section 79 of the City Charter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council has considered the proposed plan and has 
determined that it shall be the future public improvement plan for the City of 
Delaware; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article XVII, Section 80 of the City Charter requires that City 
Council adopt, by resolution, the Five-Year Capital Improvements Program on 
or before October 15; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Council will review the 2019-2023 CIP at Work Sessions 
before October 8. 
 
 WHEREAS, Council discussed possible amendments to the plan which 
may be considered as part of the adopted 2019 budget.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the 2019-2023 Five-Year Capital Improvements 
Program for the General Fund, Airport, Fire, Police, Public Works, Parks, 
Equipment Replacement, Technology, Building Maintenance, Water, Sewer, 
Storm Sewer, Refuse, Parks Impact, Police Impact, and Fire Impact attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted as the official plan for future public 
improvements. 
 
 SECTION 2.  That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 
immediately after its passage.   
 
 
PASSED:     _____________________, 2018  YEAS ____     NAYS ____ 
        ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________     ____________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 







3

4

7

17

 20

23

28

33



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20    DATE: 08/27/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-79    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE 
TO INCREASE FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF FUEL, AND DECLARING 
AN EMERGENCY.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The amount budgeted for fuel purchase shown in individual departmental 
accounts is based on three year average fuel usage/costs.  Variations in both 
fuel price and usage can result in the need for additional funding being 
required.  During the first quarter of 2018 for example, the Street Division of 
Public Works utilized significantly more fuel than the historical average as a 
result of multiple snow and ice events.  Also the average cost per gallon for 
regular unleaded gasoline is 12% higher for the first half of 2018 over 2017 
costs.  Similarly the cost of on-road diesel is up 19% over the same time period 
last year.  The combined impact of increased usage and purchase cost has 
resulted in the anticipated need for additional funding to cover fuel purchase 
through the end of the year.     
  
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
A supplemental appropriation in the amount of $74,000.00 is being proposed 
that will cover the cost of purchasing regular unleaded and diesel fuel through 
the end of 2018.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 



 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The supplemental appropriation will reduce the unencumbered balances of the 
following funds: General, Street Maintenance and Repair, Parks & Recreation,  
Refuse, and Cemetery.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E. – Public Works Director/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at first reading. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Fuel Usage History 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-79 
 

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING THE 2018 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO INCREASE 
FUNDING FOR THE PURCHASE OF FUEL, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City purchases an estimated 160,000 gallons of combined 
unleaded gasoline and diesel fuel annually for the operation of the fleet vehicles; 
and 
 WHEREAS, the City estimates the cost of fuel to be purchased based on 
average usage and projected cost per gallon; and  
 
 WHEREAS, fluctuations in actual fuel usage and purchase cost result in the 
need for additional funding to cover actual fuel costs to the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, the anticipated end of year costs for fuel for several City 
departments and divisions will exceed amounts budgeted in the 2018 
appropriations; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation is required to provide funding to 
cover the anticipated end-of-year cost for fuel purchase.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 

 
 SECTION 1.  There is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered balance 
of the General Fund $26,000 in the following accounts:  
 

Police Fuel Supply (101-0041-5345)    $  22,000 
Planning Fuel Supply (101-0061-5345)   $    2,500 
Engineering Fuel Supply (101-0041-5345)   $    1,000 
Building Fuel Supply (101-0071-5345)   $       500 
 
SECTION 2.  There is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered balance 

of the Street Maintenance and Repair Fund $21,000 in the following accounts:  
 

Street Fuel Supply (200-2020-5345)    $  17,500 
Planning Lube Supply (200-2030-5345)   $    3,500 
 
SECTION 3.  There is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered balance 

of the Parks and Recreation $6,000 in the following account:  
 



Fuel Supply (210-2110-5345)       $    6,000 
 
SECTION 4.  There is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered balance 

of the Refuse Fund $19,000 in the following accounts:  
 

Refuse Fuel Supply (550-5520-5345)     $   14,000 
Recycle Fuel Supply (550-5530-5345)   $     5,000 
 
SECTION 5.  There is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered balance 

of the Cemetery Fund $2,000 in the following account:  
 

Cemetery Fuel Supply (212-0212-5345)     $     2,000 
 
SECTION 6. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
 SECTION 7.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby declared 
to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, 
health and welfare of the City and to provide for the continued operation of city 
vehicles and equipment used to perform daily duties and assignments, and as 
such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS____  NAYS____    
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:   YEAS___   NAYS____   
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018  YEAS____ NAYS____ 

 ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 

 



Department/Division 2015 2016 2017 2018

Public Works Administration 678 377 309 464

Airport 1115 644 382 552

Building Maintenance 248 219 95 194

City Garage * 316 247 319 314

Engineering Div. 770 713 789 712

Fire Department 8377 7569 7815 8532

Finance Department 97 41 60 49

Parks & Natural Resources 6258 4853 5695 6234

Information Technology 103 116 116 60

Municipal Court** 127 169 175 200

Oak Grove Cemetery 871 887 1308 1167

Police Department 14165 13609 15391 14810

Planning Department 831 920 902 1138

Refuse Collection 13872 13282 15542 15029

Recycling Division 6502 6480 7077 7791

Sewer Collection 4274 3464 3616 3877

Street Maintenance 14119 7813 7884 11180

Sewer Treatment 2329 1171 798 812

Storm Water 100 146 110 283

Traffic 1733 1778 2137 2019

Water Distribution 5003 4403 5233 5075

Water Treatment 430 562 713 605

Totals 82,317   69,462  76,465   81,096  

4-Year 1st & 2nd Qrt Fuel Use Summary



TO: Members of City Council

FROM: Dean Stelzer, Finance Director

DATE: August 23, 2018

Reports Included

Page                     Reports                   Purpose

2 Revenues by Source This summary compares year-to-date revenues for 2018 to 2017 by source.

3  General Fund Summary of General Fund budgeted revenues, expenditures and fund 

  balance.

4 Other  Operating Funds Summary of budgeted revenues, expenditures, & fund balances for 

   non-general fund operating funds.

5 Other Funds Other non-operating funds revenues, expenditures and fund balance.

6 Insurance Summary of the City's self-funded health insurance costs with 

  comparisons to last year.

7 Income Tax Monthly income tax collections for last three years.  Also includes 

  tax collection projections for remainder of the year.

Highlights:

*  Income tax collections are up 4.25% compared to last year.  The 2018 projection was for a 5.5% increase. 

Will monitor collections as it appears 2018 tax collections will not meet projections.

* Engineering Fee revenue is down $765,287 from the very high 2017 levels.  Contracted

engineering review expenditures are approximately $184,467 above 2017 amounts at this time.

Engineering review fees are paid up front prior to review costs being incurred.  Due to the amount

paid in 2017, we will see expenditures higher than revenues in 2018 and into 2019.

* Building permits are up $271,248 (61%) compared to last year.

* Capacity and Impact Fee revenue related to new housing and commercial development is up

$1,560,027 (77%) over 2017 levels.

YTD 2018 Budget Supplementals

18-10 ($200,000) - General Fund - Reduce Council budget 

$91,547  -  Airport Hangar Fund - Amount inadvertently left out of original appropriation

($1,750,000) - Refuse Fund - Reduce budget for project started in 2017

18-19 $10,000 - Dev Reserve Fund - Cams, Inc. economic development incentive

18-20  $18,000 - P&R Fund - Increase appropriation for pool pump replacement

18-25 $25,000 - Airport Fund - For Business Plan

18-26 $1,185,686 - CIP Fund - Gazette Building improvements

$615,000 - Municipal Impact Fee Fund - Gazette Building improvements

18-39 $10,000 - ED Incentive

18-42 $57,670 - Muncipal Court

18-45 $90,000 - SMR snow removal

18-46 $376,115 - Park Improvement Levy

APRIL FINANCE REPORT



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

REVENUES BY SOURCE

July 31, 2018

Revenues Revenues  

@ 7/31/18 @ 7/31/17 % Change

TAXES

Income Tax 17,326,090$         16,619,521$         4.25%
 Property Tax 1,956,592             912,355                114.46%

Local Government Fund 355,506                352,279                0.92%
Hotel/Motel Tax 46,941                  43,598                  7.67%
Gasoline Taxes 676,668                658,218                2.80%
License Plate Tax 406,941                398,966                2.00%

 
FEES  

Franchise Fee (cable tv) 202,464$              184,045$              10.01%
Parking Meter & Lot Fees 47,195                  49,338                  -4.34%
Fines/Forfeitures/Court Diversion Fees 83,170                  83,315                  -0.17%
Impact Fees 606,641                314,072                93.15%
Airport - Fuel 381,547                298,110                27.99%
Cemetery 83,190                  101,855                -18.33%
Golf Course 110,465                111,608                -1.02%

REIMBURSEMENTS

Engineering Fees 733,748$              1,499,035$           -51.05%
Fire/EMS Reimbursement 523,406                682,041                -23.26%
Prosecutor Reimbursements 79,280                  150,625                -47.37%
Building Permits and Fees 718,930                447,682                60.59%

UTILITY CHARGES   
Water  -  Meter Charges 3,136,078$           3,061,579$           2.43%
           -  Capacity Fees 1,529,738             878,858                74.06%
Sewer  -  Meter Charges 3,735,061             3,703,854             0.84%
           -  Capacity Fees 1,463,639             847,061                72.79%
Refuse 2,016,109             2,046,960             -1.51%
Storm Sewer 501,282                492,616                1.76%

MUNICIPAL COURT REVENUES 1,984,598$           2,141,674$           -7.33%

2



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

GENERAL FUND REVENUES

July 31, 2018

July 58.33% of year Comparative

Revenues 2018 Revenues As Revenues % Change

7/31/2018 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2017 YTD

GENERAL FUND

Property Tax 1,507,124 1,500,000 100.47% 706,401 113.35%

City Income Tax 9,369,791 14,787,387 63.36% 8,989,340 4.23%

Other Taxes 975 0 0.00% 1,050 0.00%

Local Government Fund 355,506 610,000 58.28% 352,279 0.92%

Fines and Forfeitures 83,170 140,000 59.41% 83,315 (0.17%)
Engineering Fees 733,748 1,000,000 73.37% 1,499,035 (51.05%)

Prosecutor Contracts 79,280 285,000 27.82% 150,625 (47.37%)

Parking Meters 22,289 38,000 58.66% 20,456 8.96%

Other Fees and Contracts 29,595 0 0.00% 14,911 98.48%

Liquor Permits 43,024 45,000 95.61% 39,488 8.95%

Franchise Fees 202,464 375,000 53.99% 184,045 10.01%

Licenses & Permits 718,930 725,000 99.16% 447,682 60.59%

Investment Income 341,263 402,000 84.89% 152,756 123.40%

Miscellaneous 43,812 100,000 43.81% 36,596 19.72%

Reimbursements 119,263 200,000 59.63% 80,938 47.35%

Transfers 1,204,259 1,920,000 62.72% 1,053,902 14.27%

TOTAL 14,854,493 22,127,387 67.13% 13,812,819 7.54%

 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

Comparative

Expenses 2018 Expenses As Expenses % Change

7/31/2018 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2017 YTD

GENERAL FUND

City Council 89,358 154,873 57.70% 70,764 26.28%

City Manager 413,335 686,556 60.20% 403,117 2.53%

Human Resources 162,405 327,781 49.55% 170,186 (4.57%)

Economic Development 264,406 391,299 67.57% 246,069 7.45%

Legal Affairs/Prosecution 452,012 793,893 56.94% 434,502 4.03%

Finance 888,342 1,521,673 58.38% 823,713 7.85%

Income Tax Refunds 350,820 400,000 87.71% 348,363 0.71%

General Administration 3,495,160 5,303,700 65.90% 3,319,593 5.29%

Risk Management 33,435 343,000 9.75% 2,927 1042.30%

Police 4,891,519 8,744,063 55.94% 4,478,124 9.23%

Planning 673,322 1,161,774 57.96% 571,114 17.90%

Engineering 921,173 1,763,921 52.22% 877,402 4.99%

City Buildings 266,589 509,690 52.30% 247,020 7.92%

TOTAL 12,901,876 22,102,223 58.37% 11,992,894 7.58%

General Fund Beginning Balance January 1, 2018 5,001,541           

 2018 General Fund Revenues 14,854,493       

 2018 General Fund Expenditures (12,901,876)      

 Advances to Other Funds -                      

 Outstanding Encumbrances 6/30/18 (1,214,835)        

General Fund Ending Fund Balance July 31, 2018 5,739,323        

3



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

OTHER OPERATING FUNDs
July 31, 2018

 

REVENUES

Revenues 2018 Revenues As Revenues % Change

7/31/2018 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2017 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,695,022 2,869,500 59.07% 1,654,445 2.45%

STORM SEWER 502,208 853,000 58.88% 493,386 1.79%

PARKS AND RECREATION 771,599 1,325,500 58.21% 903,855 (14.63%)

CEMETERY 138,609 251,000 55.22% 145,605 (4.80%)

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 486,270 705,620 68.91% 404,303 20.27%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 7,303,351 11,217,625 65.11% 10,572,939 (30.92%)

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,403,528 2,809,500 49.96% 1,532,829 (8.44%)

GOLF COURSE 110,465 183,500 60.20% 111,608 (1.02%)

WATER 3,315,838 5,921,482 56.00% 3,420,203 (3.05%)

SEWER 3,992,147 7,082,000 56.37% 3,955,318 0.93%

REFUSE 2,066,279 3,614,500 57.17% 2,074,890 (0.42%)

GARAGE ROTARY 327,578 652,492 50.20% 322,720 1.51%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 538,009 1,076,017 50.00% 526,425 2.20%

TOTAL 22,650,903 38,561,736 58.74% 26,118,526 (13.28%)

 

EXPENDITURES

Expenditures 2018 Expenses As Expenses % Change

7/31/2018 Budget % of Budget 7/31/2017 YTD

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,728,767 3,019,086 57.26% 1,460,673 18.35%

STORM SEWER 307,043 1,466,181 20.94% 736,523 (58.31%)

PARKS AND RECREATION 792,656 1,422,368 55.73% 726,635 9.09%

CEMETERY 141,951 327,957 43.28% 152,504 (6.92%)

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 480,897 791,739 60.74% 357,100 34.67%

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 6,114,046 11,999,000 50.95% 5,141,045 18.93%

MUNICIPAL COURT 1,502,243 2,791,646 53.81% 1,391,325 7.97%

GOLF COURSE 99,833 222,698 44.83% 98,373 1.48%

WATER OPERATIONS 3,456,620 6,351,400 54.42% 3,348,961 3.21%

SEWER OPERATIONS 3,584,762 6,998,699 51.22% 3,710,261 (3.38%)

REFUSE 3,324,328 5,300,142 62.72% 1,834,763 81.19%

GARAGE ROTARY 360,155 654,493 55.03% 328,257 9.72%

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 617,854 1,165,329 53.02% 499,668 23.65%

TOTAL 22,511,155 42,510,738 52.95% 19,786,088 13.77%

 

FUND BALANCES

Balance Revenues Expenditures Outstanding Balance

1/1/2018 7/31/2018 7/31/2018 Encumb. 7/31/2018

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 516,178 1,695,022 1,728,767 291,106 191,327

STORM SEWER 1,482,843 502,208 307,043 86,301 1,591,707

PARKS AND RECREATION 295,953 771,599 792,656 134,771 140,125

CEMETERY 297,627 138,609 141,951 35,373 258,912

AIRPORT OPERATIONS 271,973 486,270 480,897 113,538 163,808

FIRE/EMS INCOME TAX 10,568,832 7,303,351 6,114,046 2,963,201 8,794,936

MUNICIPAL COURT 2,441,281 1,403,528 1,502,243 10,647 2,331,919

GOLF COURSE 68,498 110,465 99,833 10,129 69,001

WATER OPERATIONS 1,230,846 3,315,838 3,456,620 253,526 836,538

SEWER OPERATIONS 2,657,780 3,992,147 3,584,762 230,750 2,834,415

REFUSE 2,391,565 2,066,279 3,324,328 674,151 459,365

GARAGE ROTARY 340,629 327,578 360,155 96,562 211,490

INFORMATION TECH. ROTARY 724,385 538,009 617,854 43,861 600,679

TOTAL 23,288,390 22,650,903 22,511,155 4,943,916 18,484,222

4



FINANCE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

OTHER FUND REVENUES/EXPENSES/FUND BALANCE

July 31, 2018

Beginning Ending

Fund Revenues Expenses Outstanding Fund

Balance 7/31/2018 7/31/2018 Encumbrances Balance

STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 211,817 63,668 103,900 0 171,585

LICENSE FEE 222,085 253,722 2,982 0 472,825

TREE REPL FUND 216,317 27,600 50,000 0 193,917

HANGARS 164,197 58,628 35,259 0 187,566

REC CTR INCOME TAX 4,002,841 1,440,282 955,426 316,542 4,171,155

AIRPORT TIF FUND 82,416 27,069 0 0 109,485

GLENN RD BRIDGE TIF FUND 2,000,560 1,097,763 25,386 244,993 2,827,944

SKY CLIMBER/V&P TIF 0 47,977 23,991 46,009 -22,023

MILL RUN TIF 0 147,824 80,993 89,007 -22,176

COURT-IDIAM 22,434 26,037 7,794 6,609 34,068

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 58,801 1,800 2,556 2,258 55,787

COURT-ALCOHOL TREATMENT 534,109 24,598 9,450 0 549,257

OMVI ENFORCEMENT/EDUCATION 5,904 867 877 3,488 2,406

POLICE JUDGEMENT FUND 121,506 60,908 34,233 26,937 121,244

PARK EXACTION FEE 167,887 0 21,000 6,500 140,387

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH-COURT 620,406 158,683 34,617 15,279 729,193

COURT-SPECIAL PROJECTS 867,015 163,698 101,976 520 928,217

COURT-PROBATION SERVICES 498,020 205,387 24,433 1,150 677,824

POLICE/FIRE DISABILITY PENSION 0 449,468 449,468 0 0

COMM PROMOTION FUND 62,076 46,941 64,697 42,015 2,305

COMMUNITY DEV BLOCK GRANT 2,530 0 0 0 2,530

E.D. REVOLVING LOAN 197,662 62,906 15,612 55,540 189,416

CHIP GRANT 400 0 400 0 0

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT 331,642 641,062 642,897 3,000 326,807

PARK IMPROV BOND FUND 109,778 765,105 367,676 0 507,207

SE HIGHLAND BOND FUND 83,896 584,715 288,804 0 379,807

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 1,333,336 2,155,955 1,126,285 1,526,129 836,877

POINT PROJECT 0 160,133 7,212 1,077,686 -924,765

FAA AIRPORT GRANT 0 -61,010 0 0 -61,010

FAA ALLOC/IMP GRANT 0 43,512 4,170 81,988 -42,646

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 141,957 200,000 162,403 36,688 142,866

PARKS IMP FEE 1,120,156 336,277 24,468 391,229 1,040,736

POL IMP FEE 311,854 54,490 3,225 165 362,954

FIRE IMP FEE 305,460 103,195 91,794 169 316,692

MUNIC IMPACT FEE FUND 556,779 117,271 191,601 299,554 182,895

GLENN RD S CONSTR FUND 3,254,650 10,728,328 10,834,556 19,287 3,129,135

PARKING LOTS 42,271 24,907 28,215 13,147 25,816

WATER CIP 10,366,075 2,597,441 2,390,919 65,171 10,507,426

SEWER CIP 7,564,573 3,865,231 3,598,894 1,631,721 6,199,189

HEALTH INSURANCE 1,918,595 2,899,408 3,305,294 10,465 1,502,244

WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,352,622 426,478 101,781 3,768 2,673,551

FIRE DONATION 6,345 0 0 0 6,345

PARKS/REC DONATION 6,810 12,000 0 0 18,810

POLICE DONATION 7,796 0 560 0 7,236

MAYORS DONATION FUND 1,657 1,090 1,426 0 1,321

PROJECT TRUST FUND 546,222 72,333 0 0 618,555

UNCLAIMED FUNDS TRUST FUND 15,394 0 0 0 15,394

MUNI CT UNCLAIMED FUNDS 57,425 7,519 0 0 64,944

DEV RESERV FUND 924,886 0 10,000 0 914,886

RESERVE ACCOUNT FUND 1,047,056 0 0 0 1,047,056

BERKSHIRE JEDD FUND 203,704 224,842 393,432 203,044 -167,930

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 34,981 286 836 0 34,431

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL FUND 0 34,930 29,209 0 5,721

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEE 371 6,432 5,498 0 1,305

PERFORMANCE BOND 185,077 4,148 4,148 0 185,077

  TOTAL 42,890,354 30,371,904 25,660,353 6,220,058 41,381,847

5



City of Delaware
      Employee Health Insurance Plan

July 31, 2018
 

June YTD 2018 % of YTD % Change

Account 2018 2018 Budget Budget 2017 2017-18

Life Insurance (3,758)$           818$                27,000$          3.0% 16,230$          -95.0%

Insurance Opt-Out 2,295               15,765            30,500            51.7% 17,465            -9.7%

Preventative Care 2,212               20,088            55,000            36.5% 18,012            11.5%

Vision Coverage 2,330               22,153            25,200            87.9% 6,697               230.8%

Administrative Fees

Excise Tax 1,881               2,820               30,000            0.0% 1,724               0.0%

 TPA Fees 7,933               54,765            90,000            60.9% 55,127            -0.7%

 PPO Fees 3,105               21,393            45,000            47.5% 25,620            -16.5%
 Broker Fees 405                  3,395               5,000               67.9% -                   0.0%

  Total Admin 13,324            82,373            170,000          48.5% 82,471            -0.1%
 

Stop Loss Insurance 61,772            432,261          712,000          60.7% 372,381          16.1%

Claims  

 Medical 228,239          2,080,270       3,675,000       56.6% 1,985,823       4.8%

 Dental 16,908            144,544          285,000          50.7% 146,546          -1.4%
 Prescription 110,417          507,022          815,000          62.2% 418,104          21.3%

  Total Claims 355,564          2,731,836       4,775,000       57.2% 2,550,473       7.1%

Total Costs 433,739          3,305,294       5,794,700       57.0% 3,063,729       7.9%

Employee Payment 107,127          564,680          853,000          66.2% 461,696          

Reimbursements 13,506            176,227          35,000            503.5% 154,090           

NET PLAN COSTS 313,106$        2,564,387$    4,906,700$    52.3% 2,447,943$    4.8%

6



MONTHLY INCOME TAX REVENUES 

2016-2018

 2016    2017    2018   

% OF % OF % OF

W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL ACTUAL W/H PERSONAL BUSINESS TOTAL BUDGET
               

JANUARY 1,433,007 317,649 37,649 1,788,305 1,794,272 205,680 204,662 2,204,614 1,741,914 440,952 56,565 2,239,431

FEBRUARY 2,161,101 396,158 52,085 2,609,344 1,304,987 327,145 95,437 1,727,569 1,389,553 337,859 56,041 1,783,668

MARCH 1,237,708 545,907 234,748 2,018,363 1,175,241 625,299 195,522 1,996,062 1,240,476 682,589 192,027 2,115,092

APRIL 1,481,257 2,185,373 575,354 4,241,984 1,786,686 2,352,889 1,092,340 5,231,915 1,949,558 2,433,093 806,548 5,189,199

MAY 1,390,669 153,006 33,392 1,577,067 1,388,195    185,269       50,869          1,624,333 1,387,867 213,714 18,117 1,619,698

JUNE 1,267,769 426,520 238,738 1,933,027 1,284,197    481,309       167,392        1,932,898 1,406,699 622,838 374,208 2,403,745

JULY 1,426,206 146,332 33,356 1,605,894 1,680,268 158,901 62,961 1,902,130 1,718,647 227,646 28,964 1,975,257

SUBTOTAL 10,397,717 4,170,945 1,205,322 15,773,984 63.16% 10,413,846 4,336,492 1,869,183 16,619,521 64.17% 10,834,714 4,958,691 1,532,470 17,326,090 63.36%

AUGUST 1,470,975    140,043       25,584          1,636,602 1,395,822 124,025 26,462 1,546,309

SEPTEMBER 1,167,550 523,048 257,476 1,948,074 1,303,188 421,650 287,996 2,012,834

OCTOBER 1,760,852    262,154       134,880        2,157,886 1,697,249    257,687       81,440          2,036,376

NOVEMBER 1,283,667 213,128 13,244 1,510,039 1,438,751    175,718       30,847          1,645,316

DECEMBER 1,296,162 420,091 232,478 1,948,731 1,419,960 388,069 229,805 2,037,834  

   

  TOTALS 17,376,923 5,729,409 1,868,984 24,975,316 104.09% 17,668,816 5,703,641 2,525,732 25,898,189 97.31% 10,834,714 4,958,691 1,532,470 17,326,090 63.36%

   

  BUDGETED 23,993,421 26,614,811 27,346,537

 

Total July YTD  % of Annual Projection based on ten year trend!  

Receipts Receipts  Collections JULY 2018 RECEIPTS = $17,326,090 

2008 14,159,170 9,217,657 65.10%

2009 14,719,896 9,407,197 63.91%   HIGH = 62.83% $27,576,816 

2010 15,185,348 9,670,760 63.68%   LOW = 65.10% $26,614,470 

2011 17,765,717 11,161,927 62.83%

2012 19,658,101 12,534,905 63.76%   LAST 3 YR 

2013 20,557,766 13,020,081 63.33%   AVG   = 63.41% $27,322,896 

2014 21,537,420 13,816,113 64.15%

2015 22,852,743 14,375,915 62.91% *2018 BUDGETED RECEIPTS $27,346,537 

2016 24,975,316 15,773,984 63.16%

2017 25,898,396 16,619,521 64.17%

10 Year Avg. 63.70%

7



City Manager Report 20180827 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: August 23, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
 August 4 
 * Employee Picnic 
 August 6 
 * Rotary 
 August 13 
 * City Council Meeting 
 August 14 
 * DKMM Meeting 
 * Comprehensive Plan Meeting 
 August 16 
 * Hills-Miller Annexation Meeting 
 August 17 
 * Leadership Strategy Group –MORPC 
 August 20 
 * Rotary 
 August 21 
 * Strand Board Meeting 
 August 22 
 * AEP Meeting 
  
  
  



August 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
   1 2 3 4 

   Planning 7pm    

5 6 7                                       8 9 10 11 
  Public Works/Public 

Utilities 7pm-Cancelled 
BZA 7pm 
Cancelled 

   

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
 Council 7pm      

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
 Parking & Safety 7pm  HPC 7pm    

26 27 28 29 30 31  
 Council 7pm Shade Tree 7pm     

       
       

 



September 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
      1 

       

2 3 4                                        5 6 7 8 

 Labor Day 
City Offices Closed 

 Civil Service 7pm 
Planning Commission 
7pm 

CIP Work Session 
6 pm 

  

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 City Council 7pm  BZA 7pm   Delaware County Fair 

Begins 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
  Parks & Rec – 7 pm  Jug Day 

City Offices Closed  
Noon 

 Delaware County Fair 
Ends 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 Council 7pm Shade Tree 7pm HPC 7pm    

30       
 October 1st 

CIP Work Session 
     

 



CONTRACT APPROVAL – August 27, 2018 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2018 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Responsoft LLC Software Development and License 

Agreement 
$242.10 
annually 

Fire Department 

Crawford, Murphy & Tilly, Inc Airport Strategic Planning Consultant 
Services 

$45,000 Public Works 

Kembra Financial Credit Union Subordination Agreement for V&P 
Hydraulics RLF loan 

$0 Economic 
Development 

Norflolk Southern Supplemental Agreement for Plan 
Review Services –The Point 

$110,000 Public Works 

Eastman & Smith LTD Contract for Outside Counsel, Review of 
contract with Sims Brothers Recycling 
for recycling processing 

$16,000 Public Works 

 


	01 20180827 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20180813 council minutes
	03 20180416 parking minutes
	04 20180725 hpc minutes
	05 fact sheet res 18-47, Diverston Way Parking Restrictions
	06 Res 18-47, Diverston Way Parking Restrictions
	07 Exhibit A - Diverston Way No Parking
	08 fact sheet res 18-48 Richardson St (Hayes to Vine) Parking Restrictions
	09 res 18-48, Richardson St (Hayes to Vine) Parking Restrictions
	10 Exhibit A - Richardson St-Vine St No Parking
	11 memo OldDogAleHouse_TREX_081718
	12 OldDogAleHouseTREXapplication
	13 old dog trex polic report
	14 fact sheet ord 18-69 , rezone  Morgan
	15 ord 18 -69 , Rezone  Morgan SR 521
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-69
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	16 2018-1589 morgan SR 521 rezoning staff report
	17 fact sheet ord 18- 70, rezone Seatttle House Apts
	18 ord 18-70 , rezone Seattle House
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-70
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	19 fact sheet ord 18-71 , CUP Seatttle House Apts
	20 ord 18-71 , CUP Seattle House apt
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-71
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	21 fact sheet ord 18-72 , PDP Seatttle House Apts (2)
	22 ord 18-72 , PDP Seattle House apt
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-72
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	23 2018-1394-1396 seattle House apartment staff report
	24 fact sheet ord 18- 73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	25 ord 18-73, rezone Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-73
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	26 fact sheet ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	27 Ord 18-74, CUP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-74
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	28 fact sheet ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	29 ord 18-75, PDP Highpoint Place Apts
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-75
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	30 2018-1402-1404 highpoint place apartments staff report
	31 fact sheet ord 18-76 - City Hall Annex Supplemental
	32 Ord 18-76, City Hall Security Rennovations
	33 Building Impt Supplemental Documentation
	34 fact sheet ORD 18-77, Terra Alta NCA
	35 ord 18-77 Sufficiency of Petition and Scheduling Hearing (Terra Alta CA)
	36 Terra Alta Petition - Packet
	38 Fact Sheet Res 18-49, E William Appropriation (1 Property)
	39 Res 18-49,E William Appropriation (2)
	40 App Packet 241 E William
	41 Exhibit B
	42 fact sheet res 18-50, 2019 2023 cip
	43 res 18-50, 2019-2023 cip
	44 2019-2023 CIP V4
	20180815175527244
	2019-2023 CIP V3.pdf
	20180815173622056


	46 Fact Sheet Ord 18-79,  Fuel Purchase Supplemental
	47 Ord 18-79 Fact Sheet for Fuel Supplemental
	48 4-year fuel summary 082118
	49 July 2018
	50 city managers report 20180827
	51 August Calendar 2018
	52 September Calendar 2018
	53 contract approval 20180723
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – August 27, 2018
	2018
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	$242.10 annually
	Responsoft LLC
	Software Development and License Agreement

	Public Works
	$45,000
	Crawford, Murphy & Tilly, Inc
	Airport Strategic Planning Consultant Services

	Economic Development
	Kembra Financial Credit Union
	Subordination Agreement for V&P Hydraulics RLF loan

	Public Works
	$110,000
	Norflolk Southern
	Supplemental Agreement for Plan Review Services –The Point

	Public Works
	$16,000
	Eastman & Smith LTD
	Contract for Outside Counsel, Review of contract with Sims Brothers Recycling for recycling processing





